
Page 1

AGENDA 
Meeting: STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE
Place: Kennet Room - County Hall, Trowbridge BA14 8JN

Date: Wednesday 2 March 2016

Time: 10.30 am

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Roger Bishton, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713035 or email 
roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

Membership:

Cllr  Cllr Allison Bucknell
Cllr John Smale
Cllr David Pollitt
Cllr David Jenkins
Cllr Mike Hewitt

Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE
Cllr Stuart Wheeler
Cllr Bob Jones MBE
Cllr Graham Wright

 

Substitutes:

Cllr Mark Packard
Cllr Tony Trotman
Cllr Peter Evans
Cllr Bill Moss
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe

Cllr Desna Allen
Cllr Nick Blakemore
Cllr Stephen Oldrieve
Cllr Jeff Osborn
Cllr Ernie Clark

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2

RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on the Council’s website along with this agenda and available on request.

If you have any queries please contact Democratic Services using the contact details 
above.

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/


Page 3

PART I 

Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public
 

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 6 January 2016.         

3  Declarations of Interest 

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee.

4  Chairman's Announcements 

5  Public Participation 

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.

Statements

If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this 
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 
3 speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item. 
Please contact the officer named on the front of the agenda for any further 
clarification.

Questions 

To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the 
Council received in accordance with the constitution. Those wishing to ask 
questions are required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the 
officer named on the front of the agenda (acting on behalf of the Corporate 
Director) no later than 5pm on Wednesday 24 February 2016. Please contact 
the officer named on the front of this agenda for further advice. Questions may 
be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is urgent.

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website.



Page 4

6  Update on the Grow Learning Management System 

To receive a presentation which will include a demonstration of the system.

7  Delivering the Business Plan - December 2015 (Pages 11 - 16)

A report by the Associate Director, People & Business is attached.

8  Date of Next Meeting 

To note that the next meeting is scheduled to be held on Wednesday 4 May
2016, in the Kennet Room at County Hall, Trowbridge, starting at 10.30am.

9  Urgent Items 

Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. Urgent items of a confidential nature may be 
considered under Part II of this agenda.

10  Exclusion of the Press and Public 

To agree that in accordance with section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 to 
exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in Item No. 11 because it 
is likely that if members of the public were present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and 
the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public.

PART II 

Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public
should be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt

information would be disclosed

11  Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Employer Discretions - 
Payment of Deferred Benefits (Pages 17 - 30)

A confidential report by the Associate Director, People & Business is attached.



STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
6 JANUARY 2016 IN THE KENNET COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE.

Present:

Cllr Allison Bucknell (Chair), Cllr John Smale (Vice Chairman), Cllr David Pollitt, 
Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Tony Trotman (Substitute), Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Stuart Wheeler and 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE

Also  Present:

Cllr Bill Moss

1 Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE 
(who was substituted by Cllr Tony Trotman) and Cllr Graham Wright.

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting

Resolved:

To confirm and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 4 
November 2015.

3 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

4 Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman’s announcements.

5 Public Participation

There were no members of the public present or councillors’ questions.

6 Security Vetting Policy

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Consideration was given to a report by the Associate Director, People & 
Business which sought approval for the new Security Vetting Policy.

It was explained that security vetting applied when specialised security checks 
were required for certain specified roles that included access to particularly 
sensitive or secure data.

As Wiltshire Council now worked in partnership with Wiltshire Police, some 
employees working in roles that worked closely with them required non police 
personnel vetting (NPPV) to reduce the risks of unauthorised disclosure or loss 
of sensitive police information.

A baseline personnel security standard (BPSS) check might be required if an 
employee had access to certain sensitive information via the public services 
network (PSN) in the course of their employment with the Council.

It was noted that there were no costs associated with NPPV checks as they 
were carried out by the police.  However, there was a cost associated with 
obtaining a BPSS check which was £33.16 per individual.  There would be a 
number of checks required in 2016 and work was currently underway to identify 
the individuals needing the checks.

Members were informed that the policy had been approved and ratified by the 
Joint Consultative Committee (JCC) on 7 December 2015 following consultation 
with facilities, management, HR, the legal team, union representatives and 
other stakeholders.

After some discussion,

Resolved:

To approve the Security Vetting Policy.      

7 Smoke-free Policy

The Committee received a report by the Associate Director, People and 
Business which presented a new Smoke-free Policy and Procedure. The new 
policy outlined the move to a smoke-free working environment in order to 
provide a healthy workplace for employees, which would include the removal of 
designated smoking areas on site and requiring staff to move off site.  The 
policy also removes smoking breaks.  

Members were reminded that the Committee gave some initial consideration to 
suggested planned revisions to this Policy at its last meeting but, whilst 
supporting in principle the development of a new smoke-free policy, expressed 
some concerns about the practicality of implementing and enforcing the policy, 
especially on shared sites with partners.

Page 6



It was explained that the current policy provided designated smoking areas and 
cigarette bins at each of the main hubs and depots. It also allowed managers to 
use their discretion when permitting smoking breaks outside of the lunch period, 
provided that the time was made up.

The Public Health team had expressed concerns about allowing Council staff 
and members of the public to smoke on site considering the Council’s policy to 
promote healthy living both across Wiltshire and within the workforce and 
aspiration to attain the “Healthy Workplace Charter”.  As a consequence, the 
Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) had agreed to implement smoke-free sites 
across Wiltshire Council sites on 24 August 2014.  

The new policy would provide for a three month lead in time to ensure 
arrangements were in place and to provide sufficient time for staff wishing to 
stop smoking to gain support.

During the ensuing discussion, Members once again expressed their concern 
that certain aspects of the proposed new policy would not be enforceable, 
especially those areas which were shared with partners and also outside areas 
which were accessible to by members of the public.  There was also discussion 
about potential reputational issues, specifically in relation to staff smoking in 
public places where complaints had been previously received.  

Resolved:

To reject the new Smoke-free Policy for the following reasons:-

(1) Under this Committee’s terms of reference, it can only consider 
matters relating to staff; it has no authority to make decisions 
affecting members of the Council or the general public.

(2) Whilst not being averse to agreeing to some amendments to this 
policy, the Committee considered that the proposals were unlikely to 
be enforceable, particularly relating to shared premises and council 
owned car parks.       

8 Pay Policy Statement

Consideration was given to a report by the Associate Director, People & 
Business, which presented an updated pay policy statement for the financial 
year 2016/17 for approval, prior to agreement by Council and publication on the 
Council’s website. 

It was noted that chapter 8 of the Localism Act 2011 stated that every local 
authority must prepare a pay policy statement for the financial year 2012/13 and 
each subsequent financial year.  Wiltshire Council originally published its pay 
policy statement in February 2012 and the updated policy was required to be 
published on the website by 1 April 2016.

Page 7



The Committee was informed that the existing policy had been updated to 
include:

 A revised introduction stating the forthcoming legislation that will impact 
on the council’s pay arrangements.  This includes the new National 
Living Wage, gender pay gap reporting, and the public sector exit 
payment cap.

 The ability to pay at a rate higher than the median pay rate for posts 
where there are skills shortages as stated in the Council’s market 
supplement policy.

 Information relating to the publication of trade union facility time as 
required by the Local Government Transparency Code 2015.

 An updated total number of council employees and the latest pay ratios.     

Resolved:

To approve the draft Pay Policy Statement for endorsement by Council on 
23 February 2016 on the understanding that the budget figure would first 
be reviewed and updated and subject to the heading prior to para. 71 
reading as follows:-

The relationship between the basic pay remuneration of chief officers and 
employees who are not chief officers. 

9 Update on Local Government (Green Book) Pay Negotiations 2016/17 and 
consideration of the payment of the living wage

The Committee considered a report by the Associate Director, People and 
Business, which provided an update on the national pay negotiations that were 
taking place. 

At its meeting on 14 December 2015, CLT considered whether the Council 
should adopt the Living Wage and agreed that they could not support the 
adoption of the Living Wage for the foreseeable future in light of the ongoing 
budget pressures for both the schools and non-schools teams and bearing in 
mind that the National Living Wage would be introduced from 2016 which would 
have a significant impact on lower paid staff.    

During discussion, Members supported the decision of the CLT and also noted 
that there were currently no problems in recruiting to the lower grades.

Page 8



Resolved:

(1) To note the update on pay negotiations and that further updates 
would be provided when more information became available.

(2) To agree with the introduction of the new National Living Wage which 
would have a significant impact on lower paid staff and which would 
be introduced in April 2016.                               

10 Equality & Diversity Update

The Committee considered a report by the Associate Director, People and 
Business which presented the updated Annual Equality and Diversity 
Employment Monitoring Report. It was noted that the Council was required to 
produce this information annually as part of the Public Sector Equality Duty in 
line with the Equality Act 2010.  This was the first report to be based on a new 
reporting date of 1 October which had previously been 1 April each year. The 
reporting date had been changed to move it closer to the statutory publishing 
date.

Reference was made to work that had been taking place to extend the data 
collected on the protected characteristics on SAP which included religion and 
belief, sexual orientation, marriage and civil partnerships, gender reassignment 
and caring responsibilities. Staff had been asked to complete an equalities 
monitoring questionnaire to provide this additional information but it was noted 
that 40% of staff had completed this questionnaire.  Ongoing work was being 
carried out to explain to staff why this additional information was required.

Resolved:

To note the contents of the report.  

11 Date of Next Meeting

Resolved:

To note that the next scheduled meeting of the Committee was due to be 
held on Wednesday 2 March 2016, in the Kennet Room at County Hall, 
Trowbridge, starting at 10.30am.

12 Urgent Items

There were no items of urgent business. 

Page 9



(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.00 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 10



Report for Wiltshire Council relating to the quarter ending December 2015.

Notes on the figures:

 All reported figures exclude casual employees and agency/professional services staff (unless 
stated).

 Wiltshire Council figures exclude Schools:

 Headcount = Number of positions that are filled, not individual people.
 FTE = “Full Time Equivalents” which take into account actual working hours to show 

accurate staffing levels.

 The voluntary staff turnover section does not include information for those who leave due to 
statutory retirement, ill health, compulsory or voluntary redundancy, dismissals, end of 
contract, unsatisfactory probation and TUPE transfers as these are classified as compulsory 
reasons. Only voluntary leavers are included as these are the individuals that have decided to 
leave for their own reasons and therefore it may not be in Wiltshire’s best interest. Overall 
turnover rates will be higher and can be analysed upon request.

 Although the cost associated with turnover is not readily available, CIPD estimate that the 
recruitment cost of replacing a leaver is £2,930. Based on this year’s turnover rate (10.4%) 
we could estimate that 524 employees will leave Wiltshire Council during 2015-16 resulting in 
costs of £1,533,960.

 % <1 year turnover rate: The cost of turnover in this group is generally higher as the 
investment in recruitment, induction and training is unlikely to be recovered within such a 
short time period. 

 The measures relating to last year refer to figures from the same quarter one year ago.

 The quarters refer to the following periods:   Quarter 1: January – March 2015
      Quarter 2: April – June 2015

                                Quarter 3: July – September 2015
      Quarter 4: October – December 2015

       Last year: October – December 2014

 Last year is shown on measures that can show seasonal variances e.g. we expect sickness 
figures to be lowest during January to March and then highest April to June which means an 
increase in line with the same period last year should not be seen as a concern.

 The benchmark used is that received from DLA Piper (37 local authorities). Although we don’t 
detail the exact benchmark difference we use a traffic light system to show how we compare:

10%+ Positive Variation

Less than 10% variation

10%+ Negative Variation

 The sickness measure given is the number of FTE days lost per FTE during each quarter; 
this figure is not annualised. Adding up the four quarters gives a full rolling years days lost 
per FTE. 

If you have any queries on these reports or requests for further information, please contact:
Michael Taylor
01225 718091

michael.taylor@wiltshire.gov.uk

QUARTERLY WORKFORCE REPORTING

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



 Wiltshire Council (excl. Schools) 
Quarter ended: 31st December 2015

HR Information Team Observations:

Headcount 
reduction 

1 The headcount across Wiltshire Council has seen a decrease since last 
quarter of 37 employees (-0.8%), with this figure now standing at 4828. The 
headcount has consistently decreased over the past year; as would be 
expected, reducing by 206 (4%) over the past rolling year. The greatest 
reduction in headcount was seen in the Adult Care Commissioning and 
Housing service (-18), followed by Commissioning Performance and Schools 
Effectiveness (-16). Corporate Function, Procurement and Programme Office 
saw an increase in headcount of 21 (+4.5%).

The full time equivalent (FTE) figure has decreased this quarter by 10 (-0.3%) 
and these changes in FTE were broadly in line with the changes in headcount 
outlined above. Again, the highest reductions in FTE were in the Adult Care 
Commissioning and Housing service (-17.4) followed by the Commissioning 
Performance and Schools Effectiveness service (-11.6).

Increase in 
sickness 
absence

2 Sickness rates have increased this quarter to 2.4 days lost per FTE; an 
increase of 0.5. This is 0.1 days per FTE below the benchmark for a local 
authority. This is a seasonal increase in sickness absence; the last 4 years 
have seen an increase in sickness absence between the July-September and 
October-December quarters. The highest levels of sickness absence remain 
within the Waste and Environment service at 4.0; an increase of 1.1 days per 
FTE. Whilst Legal and Governance have the second highest sickness 
absence rate at 3.0; this is due to a significant increase in sickness since last 
quarter (2.1 days per FTE). This was the largest increase seen across the 
council, meaning Legal and Governance went from having one of the lowest 
to one of the highest sickness absence rates. This is due to several long term 
absences, the majority of which were due to stomach/digestion, in electoral 
services and legal services. Commissioning, Performance and Schools 
Effectiveness decreased the most, down by 0.3 days per FTE from 1.9 to 1.6. 
Whilst Finance saw the lowest sickness absence rate across the quarter; at 
1.1 days per FTE (no change from last quarter).

This quarter, 48.4% (+5.0%) of all absence days lost were due to long term 
absences (greater than 20 days), this is 7.4% below the benchmark for a local 
authority. As well as the lowest sickness absence levels, Finance also had the 
lowest proportion of long term absences (15.6%, a decrease of 3.1%).  
Highways and Transport had the greatest improvement in long term absences 
decreasing from 50.9% to 37.7% (-13.2%). Commissioning Performance and 
Schools Effectiveness had the largest proportion of long term absences 
(65.0%) and also saw the largest increase in long term absence over the 
quarter (+38.2%).

26.0% (-4.8%) of all absence days lost were due to ‘stress/depression/mental 
health/fatigue’; of which 34.3% (-6.9%) was recorded as not work related, and 
18.9% (-1.1%) recorded as work related. ‘Cold/flu and other infections’ 
became the second most common reason for absence this quarter; with 
13.7% of absences attributed to this reason (+7.2%). This can be put down to 
a seasonal variance. 

Decrease in 
voluntary 
turnover

3 The voluntary turnover rate has decreased to 2.1% this quarter (-0.3%). This 
is 0.4% above the benchmark voluntary turnover rate for local government. 
This is the lowest voluntary turnover rate seen over the last year.

Adult Care Commissioning and Housing had the highest voluntary turnover 

QUARTERLY WORKFORCE REPORTING

Page 12



rate this quarter at 5.2% an increase of 2.9% (the largest increase seen by 
any service over the quarter). This was predominantly due to the restructure in 
Housing. 11 of the 13 voluntary leavers came from either Housing – Strategy 
and Assets (6) or Strategic Housing (5); with alternative employment not in 
local government the overriding reason. The service with the second highest 
voluntary turnover rate was Corporate Function, Procurement & Programme 
Office with 4.1% (+1.4%). This increase in the Corporate Function, 
Procurement & Programme Office service predominantly came from business 
support officers in Performance, Risk & Scrutiny (3 of the 5 voluntary leavers). 
Legal & Governance had the lowest voluntary turnover rate at 0.9% (-1.9%) 
with 1 employee leaving voluntarily in the quarter. Whilst Waste and 
Environment saw the largest decrease, reducing from 3.2% to 1.1%.

35.6% (37) of all voluntary leavers during the quarter resigned for alternative 
employment not with a local authority. This is down 3.6% from last quarter 
(39.2%, 47 leavers). The second most common reason continues to be due to 
family commitments with some 27 employees accounting for 26.0% of all 
leavers (up from 20.8%, 25 people last quarter).

The ratio of starters to leavers (FTE) has increased this quarter to 1:1.4 (a 
change from 1:1.2). This means that there were more leavers than starters 
this quarter; which would explain why the headcount and FTE have both 
decreased this quarter.

Disciplinary 
and grievance

4 The number of new disciplinary cases opened this quarter has increased 
slightly to 26 (+3). The largest number of disciplinaries this quarter came from 
Adult Social Care Operations; with 10 new disciplinary cases opened (an 
increase of 5 from last quarter). This was also the largest increase seen by a 
service this quarter. The largest decrease was witnessed by Public Health and 
Finance, both with a reduction of 3 disciplinary cases; with the latter reducing 
to 0 new cases in the quarter due to this reduction.

The number of new grievance cases opened in the quarter has increased to 5. 
This is an increase from 0 last quarter. Highways and Transport had the 
highest number of new grievance cases opened in the quarter (2).

Decrease in 
non-casual 

wage bill

5 The non-casual wage bill has decreased this quarter by £296,416 and 
currently sits at £26.16m. This is in line with the considerable fall in headcount 
seen over the last few quarters. The largest reduction by far was seen within 
Commissioning, Performance and Schools Effectiveness with a reduction of 
£250,880; 85% of the total reduction across the whole of Wiltshire Council. 
The next largest reduction was in Adult Care Commissioning & Housing; with 
a reduction of £57,514. Both figures are in line with recent large reductions in 
headcount, with the change in headcount last quarter in Commissioning, 
Performance and Schools Effectiveness making a significant impact on their 
wage bill this quarter. Corporate Function, Procurement & Programme Office 
had the largest increase in non-casual wage bill this quarter with an increase 
of £0.08m to £0.97m. This is primarily due to the centralisation of the 
procurement service. This will have also had an effect on the decrease in the 
Commissioning, Performance and Schools Effectiveness and the Adult Care 
Commissioning & Housing services. Whilst Operational Children’s Services 
also saw a significant increase this quarter of £0.07m to £4.79m, and is by far 
the highest costing service across the council.   Continuation of the social care 
recruitment activities will account for some of these increases.
 

Increase in 
casual wage 

bill

6 The casual wage bill has continued to increase this quarter by £70,745 this 
quarter to £514,011. The majority of this increase was from canvassers in 
Electoral Services in Legal & Governance who witnessed an increase of 
£75,670. This is due to the fact that in November we used the equivalent of 
49.9 FTE’s in canvassers; which were paid in December 2015 costing 

QUARTERLY WORKFORCE REPORTING

Page 13



£75,645, with a small cost of canvassers also incurred in October (£25). 
Whilst Adult Social Care Operations continue to have the largest casual wage 
bill at £0.17m. Public Health saw the largest reduction in casual wage bill this 
quarter, reducing by £0.04m to £0.10m. This reduction in Public Health could 
be due to the seasonal spike seen last quarter and therefore a reduced 
demand this quarter.

Reporting 
Agency Use

Increase in 
sick pay

7

8

Reporting on agency staff is being reviewed to ensure a consistent approach 
between the figures provided by finance, procurement and HR. This continues 
to be ongoing; however the figures published by HR are below. The use of 
agency staff continues to reduce, with a fall from 158 equivalent full time 
employees to 140 FTE’s this quarter. Operational Children’s Services saw a 
decrease in agency use this quarter of 5.4 FTE, the largest seen by a service, 
to 36.9 FTE in total across Operational Children’s Services. This follows a 
reduction of 3.5 FTE last quarter. This is caused by the reduction in use of 
agency social workers in Placement Services - Fostering and Adoption; due to 
the success of the WIHSC social worker campaign; funding new starters of 
social workers across Operational Children’s Services. Waste and 
Environment saw the second largest decrease from a service this quarter, 
reducing from 65.9 FTE to 62.1 FTE (-3.8 FTE). This decrease was primarily 
from Waste Loaders in Waste & Recycling Collection – East; who reduced 
their agency use by 4.3 FTE this quarter.

In line with the decrease in agency use this quarter; the spend on agency staff 
has also decreased significantly. Reducing our spend on agency by £369,375; 
to an overall spend of £1.93m over the quarter. Since the same period last 
year the spend on agency has reduced by £0.85m, a reduction of 31%. 
Consistent with the largest decrease in agency use over the quarter, 
Operational Children’s Services also saw the largest decrease in agency 
spend over the quarter (-£123,874), spending £0.74m between October and 
December.

The cost of sick pay has increased this quarter by £146,016 to £763,814. This 
is in line with the seasonal increase in sickness absence (+0.5 days per FTE). 
Operational Children’s Services saw the largest increase in sick pay over the 
quarter (+£48,395) to £178,418; in line with an increase in sickness absence 
of (+0.4 days lost per FTE). This is also the highest cost of sick pay to the 
council. The majority of this increase in Operational Children’s Services came 
from the 0-25yr SEND Service and Early Help. With a significant impact from 
North & East in both services. The fact that there was a disproportionate 
increase in cost of sick pay (+£48,395) to increase in sickness absence (+0.4) 
is due to the number of highly paid employees (such as service managers, 
team managers and social workers) seeing an increase in sickness absence. 

The sickness statistics for North & East children’s services and especially for 
Early Help, have been referred to the HR advisory service as none of the main 
contributory reasons are necessarily common with seasonal variance in 
sickness (such as stomach, chest and respiratory and stress); with stress in 
YOT workers contributing the most prevalent. Conversely the SEND North & 
East service increase was in fact predominantly due to seasonal reasons; i.e. 
cold/flu and other infections. Economy and Planning saw the largest decrease 
in sick pay (-£20,274) to £35,282. This is not in line with their change in 
sickness absence over the quarter (+0.5 days per FTE). This is mainly due to 
two employees, one in Employment and Skills and one in Development 
Control North, having to repay the council for overpaid statutory and 
occupational sick pay (£5,591 and £2,360 respectively) whilst a highly paid 
manager in the service has returned to work; meaning the costs have reduced 
significantly whilst the sickness absence has increased in much lower paid 
staff; such as planning officers and enforcement officers.

QUARTERLY WORKFORCE REPORTING

Page 14



Staffing Levels
Measure Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Headcount 5034 4984 4865 4828
FTE 3802 3753 3685 3675

Agency worker use (equivalent 
number of FTE’s used during 

quarter)
153 167 158 140

Ratio of managers to employees 1:9 1:9 1:9 1:9
FTE of managers 526 513 510 509

Number of redundancies
made during quarter 3 28 116 12

Ratio of starters to leavers (FTE) 1:0.9 1:1.5 1:1.2 1:1.4

Sickness Absence
Measure Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Last year Benchmark

Working days 
lost per FTE 2.4 days 2.2 days 1.9 days 2.4 days 2.4 days

% of total 
absences over 

20 days
40.8% 42.1% 43.4% 48.4% 44.8%

New Health and Safety RIDDOR related injuries
Measure Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Benchmark

No. of workplace 
incidents/injuries reported 1 4 4 2

New Disciplinary, Grievance and Absence Cases
Measure Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Benchmark

Disciplinary 
cases 33 20 23 26

Grievance 
cases 3 2 0 5

Absence 
cases 124 110 142 120 n/a

Voluntary Staff Turnover
Measure Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Last year Benchmark

% staff turnover 2.7% 3.0% 2.4% 2.1% 2.2%

% <1 year turnover 
rate 5.5% 4.8% 5.1% 4.0% 3.6% n/a

% Under 25’s 
voluntary turnover 6.2% 5.3% 6.9% 4.5% 3.7% n/a

Average leavers’ 
length of service 5.5 years 7.7 years 8.2 years 6.3 years 7.6 years n/a

            QUARTERLY WORKFORCE REPORTING

Page 15

http://www.hse.gov.uk/riddor/


Why this is important: Clear budgetary restraints mean that keeping track of this information is vital. 
Whilst we are seeing a reduction in contracted employees we may see some services using 
alternative resourcing options on a more regular basis such as agency workers, consultants or 
casuals. This information will highlight whether this is happening or not.

Why this is important: Sick pay amounted to £2,630,230 across Wiltshire Council during the 2014-15 
financial year and therefore this is a substantial area of spend that should be minimised whenever 
possible. Some services may also be looking to employees to work more hours than they previously 
have done to cover gaps where a reduction in the headcount of employees has been made. It is 
therefore important that we keep track of the change in FTE resulting from employees changing their 
hours.

Employee costs
Measure

Relating to Quarter Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Last year

Total paid in salaries to 
employees (non casual) £26.40m £26.61m £26.46m £26.16m £26.08m

Total paid in salary to casual 
employees £0.35m £0.42m £0.44m £0.51m £0.41m

Total salary pay £26.75m £27.03m £26.90m £26.68m £26.49m

Total paid to agency workers £2.57m £2.57m £2.30m £1.93m £2.78m

Median employee basic salary £19,742 £20,253 £20,253 £20,253 £19,317

Additional financial information
Measure

(If the figure is negative a 
saving has been achieved)

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Cost of sick pay £0.79m £0.72m £0.62m £0.76m

FTE change due to employee 
hour changes -8.6 -4.5 -15.4 -6.0

Cost/saving of employee 
hour changes -£199,026 -£154,971 -£318,662 -£124,842

Employee Diversity

Measure Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Last year

% < 25 7.2% 7.1% 7.0% 6.7% 7.6%

% 55 and over 23.4% 23.8% 24.0% 24.3% 23.2%

% Female 69.8% 70.0% 70.1% 70.2% 69.5%

% Part-time 44.0% 44.0% 42.8% 42.5% 43.5%

% Temporary contracts 9.1% 8.9% 8.6% 7.9% 9.0%

% Black or Minority Ethnic 1.9% 1.9% 2.0% 2.0% 1.9%

% Disabled 2.7% 2.7% 2.8% 2.8% 2.6%

QUARTERLY WORKFORCE REPORTING

Page 16



Document is Restricted

Page 17

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Delivering the Business Plan - December 2015
	11 Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Employer Discretions - Payment of Deferred Benefits
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2 a
	Appendix 2 b
	Appendix 2 c
	Appendix 3


